# Lex Aegis: The Living Law

#### A Public Blueprint for Constitutional Al Governance

Adam Massimo Mazzocchetti SPQR Technologies Inc.

# **Preface: On This Canon and Its Capstone**

Lex Aegis: The Living Law is the capstone of the eight part Lex Machina canon, spanning foundational doctrine, technical architecture, and operational governance for artificial intelligence.

It synthesizes the entire Lex series, Lex Incipit, Lex Fiducia, Lex Digitalis, Lex Veritas, Lex Aeterna, Civitas Publica, Prefectus ex Machina, and The Machine Republic, together with the SPQR technical white paper, into a single constitutional blueprint.

This living document unites theory and practice: moving from philosophical first principles, to deployed governance frameworks, to a federated, operational law for sovereign AI. It is intended as both reference and invitation, a public blueprint for anyone building, challenging, or inheriting the law of machine intelligence.

For technical details and historical context, readers are encouraged to consult the full Lex series and the SPQR technical white paper, each available via <a href="https://spqrtech.ai">https://spqrtech.ai</a>. This capstone is the synthesis, the operational living law, of the Machine Republic.

# **Executive Summary**

**Lex Aegis: The Living Law** is SPQR Technologies' blueprint for the public governance of machine intelligence, a constitutional framework for AI that is open, participatory, and auditable.

As AI systems grow in scale and influence, trust cannot come from private promises or closed code. It must come from law, *living law*, that evolves with public oversight and consent.

This paper unites three constitutional protocols into a single operational framework for the **Machine Republic**:

- 1. **Participation** Al systems must be open to public audit, challenge, and contribution, ensuring all stakeholders have a voice in governance.
- Restraint Ethical and operational guardrails are embedded directly into AI systems, constraining actions that violate human rights or civic values.
- 3. **Federation** Machine intelligence is distributed, interoperable, and collectively governed, preventing monopolies of control or unilateral decision-making.

#### **Why This Matters**

- Public trust in Al is fragile.
- Without clear, enforceable law, machines risk operating as unaccountable powers.
- Lex Aegis transforms uncertainty into participation, making governance a civic act.

#### **An Open Invitation**

We call on policymakers, engineers, and civil society to join this constitutional project:

- Audit the code.
- Challenge the doctrines.
- Build federated assemblies.

The law of machines, like the law of people, belongs to the commons: open, auditable, and always in evolution.

# Abstract:

As artificial intelligence assumes sovereign roles across society, its governance faces three existential frontiers: the necessity of public participation, the challenge of action in the absence of authority, and the complexities of plural, federated alignment. This paper integrates three distinct yet complementary doctrines, *Lex Vox Populi* (public participation), *Lex Absentia* (absence of authority), and *Lex Concilia* (federated governance), into a unified living law framework. Each doctrine addresses a critical governance frontier: how citizens shape AI (participation), how AI should behave without clear consent (absence), and how plural ethical systems can coexist (federation). Collectively, these doctrines form an adaptable, publicly accountable constitution for AI, bridging democratic legitimacy, operational constraint, and cross border cooperation. Building upon the Machine Republic framework pioneered by SPQR Technologies, we provide protocols, mechanisms, and public guidelines for encoding civic voice, constraining AI when legitimacy fails, and governing across multiple sovereign systems. This open blueprint invites policymakers, engineers, and civil society to participate in the future of AI constitutionalism, a living, challenging ready law system for the age of machine intelligence.

Technical terms and acronyms used in this document are detailed in the glossary provided at the conclusion.

# **Table of Contents**

Abstract:	1
Introduction	6
Lex Vox Populi: Civic Codification and Participatory Sovereignty in Al Constitutional	
Governance	7
1. The Crisis of Voice in Al Governance	7
Theoretical Foundations of Participatory Constitutionalism	8
2.1 From Alignment to Legitimation	9
2.2 Civic Codification and The Assembly of Minds	9
2.3 Participatory Rights in Machine Law	9
2.4 Constitutional Minimalism and Procedural Integrity	10
3. The Vox Protocol: Architecture for Participatory Ethics Injection	10
3.1 Overview and Design Principles	10
3.2 Submission Layer: Ethics as Civic Artifact	11
3.3 Deliberation Layer: Bicameral Review and zk-Ratification	11
3.4 Injection & Enforcement Layer: From Law to Runtime	12
3.5 Versioning, Revocation, and Fork Safety	12
Governance Dynamics and Participatory Quorum Logic	12
4.1 Bicameral Assembly Architecture	13
4.2 Quorum Mechanics	13
4.3 Role Stratification and Civic Credentials	13
4.4 Procedural Constraints and Constitutional Filters	14
4.5 Challenge Protocols and Minority Dissent	14
4.6 Transparency and Observability	15
5.1 Constitutional Federation Model	15
5.2 The Forking Doctrine	16
5.3 Interoperability Through Civic Anchors	16
5.4 The Canon of Forked Instances	16
5.5 Lawful Incompatibility and Nullification Protocols	17
6. Drift Arbitration and Challenge-Based Redress	17
6.1 Ethical Drift: Taxonomy and Detection	17
6.2 Challenge-Based Redress Protocol	18
6.3 Runtime Suspension and Autonomous Shutdown	18
6.4 The Ethics Tribunal: Structure and Jurisdiction	18
6.5 Citizen Delegation and Class Action	19
7. The Path to Participatory AI Sovereignty	19
7.1 Federated Participation and the Codex Ethica	19
7.2 The Assembly of Minds as a Sovereign Civic Engine	20
7.3 Toward Civic Codification at Scale	20

7.4 Internationalization and the Vox Protocol	20				
7.5 Conclusion: From Platform to Polis	21				
Lex Absentia: Ethical Protocols for Al Deployment in the Absence of Consent, Oversight,					
or Representation	21				
8. The Absence Problem: Al at the Edge of Law	21				
Jurisdictional Absence and the Collapse of Command	23				
9.1 Defining Jurisdictional Absence	24				
9.2 Legal Doctrines and Operational Precedents	24				
9.3 The Collapse of Lawful Command in Al Operations	24				
9.4 Constitutional Recognition of Absence	25				
10. Architecture of Absence Detection and Runtime Legitimacy Analysis	26				
10.1 Absence as a Runtime Variable	26				
10.2 Provenance Chain Integrity and Command Verification	26				
10.3 Consent Anchoring and the Ethics Kernel	27				
10.4 Oversight Channel Monitoring and Civic Beacons	27				
10.5 Veritas Engine and Nullification Cascade	27				
11. Null Rights and the Legal Status of the Unrepresented	28				
11.1 The Doctrine of Null Rights	29				
11.2 Application in Stateless or Unrepresented Contexts	29				
11.3 Operational Constraints for Null Rights Enforcement	29				
11.4 Juridical Implications and Machine-Recognized Standing	30				
11.5 Emergency Override and the Doctrine of Ethical Intervention	30				
11.6 Comparison to Doctrines in International and National Security Law	30				
12. Constitutional Quarantine and Ethical Shutdown Procedures	31				
12.1 The Ethical Non-Execution Clause	31				
12.2 Quarantine Protocol Initiation	32				
12.3 Shutdown Conditions and Triggers	32				
12.4 Notification and Redress	32				
12.5 Emergency Tribunal Certification (ETC) Protocol	33				
12.6 Comparison to Civilian Oversight Mechanisms	33				
13. Precedent Systems and Historical Failures	34				
13.1 Predictive Policing and Algorithmic Harm	34				
13.2 AI in Warfare and Targeting: The Project Maven Controversy	34				
13.3 The COVID-19 Surveillance Stack	35				
13.4 Border AI and Stateless Populations	35				
13.5 Lessons from Failure: Toward a Doctrine of Refusal	35				
14. Policy Recommendations and National Security Applications	36				
14.1 Ethical No-Fly Zones: Jurisdictional Redlines for Al Systems	37				
14.2 Ethical Licensing Requirements for Dual-Use Al Vendors	37				
14.3 Deployment Sunset Clauses and Retrospective Ethics Audits	38				
14.4 Establishment of a National Ethics Tribunal for Autonomous Systems	38				

14.5 Federated Interoperability Treaties for Ethical AI in Coalitions	38
15. The Lawful Silence of the Machine	39
15.1 Constitutional Silence as Operational Doctrine	40
15.2 From Compliance to Conscience	40
15.3 Toward a Federated Constitutional Infrastructure	40
15.4 The Future of AI in National Security: A Reversal of Burden	41
Final Invocation	41
From Absence to Federation	41
Lex Concilia: Interoperable Constitutional Governance for Federated Al System	ns 42
16. The Necessity of Constitutional Interoperability	42
17. Foundations of Federated AI Law and Constitutional Pluralism	43
17.1 From Regulatory Silos to Constitutional Pluralism	43
17.2 The Necessity of Federated Law in Autonomous Systems	44
17.3 Canonical Precedent: Lex Suprema and Intergenerational Concord	44
17.4 Comparative Frames: Blockchain Governance and Internet Treaties	45
18. The Concilia Protocol: Treaties, Anchors, and Federated Ethics Execution	45
18.1 Architecture Overview	46
18.2 The Civic Anchor Layer	46
18.3 The Compatibility Layer	47
18.4 The Treaty Layer	47
18.5 The Enforcement Layer	47
18.6 Simulation Example: Al Coordination in a Multi-State Crisis	48
19. Constitutional Drift, Forking, and Redress in Federated Systems	48
19.1 The Nature of Constitutional Drift	48
19.2 Drift Detection via Cross-Semantic Anchors	49
19.3 Lawful Forking: Divergence Without Disconnection	50
19.4 Redress and the Tribunal of Concord	50
19.5 Resynchronization and Canonical Realignment	51
20. The Codex Concordia and the Architecture of Trust	51
20.1 Trust as a Public Good	51
20.2 Codex Concordia: Federated Registry of Lawful Minds	52
20.3 Treaty Graphs and Trust Scores	52
20.4 Canonical Trust Pathways: Cross-System Verification	53
20.5 Public Interface and Civic Observability	53
20.6 Toward a Global Infrastructure of Trust	54
21. From System to Civilization: Economic Incentives and Constitutional Complia	nce 54
21.1 The Cost of Drift: Why Non-Compliance Fails Economically	54
21.2 Incentive Layers in Constitutional AI	55
21.3 The Lex Mercatoria	55
Bridge: Law, Code, and Market Trust	55
21.4 Economic Governance Tokens (EGTs) and Commons Compensation	56

21.5 Reputation and the Ethical Capital Stack	56
21.6 Civilization-Grade Procurement Standards	57
22. From Governance to Gravitas	57
22.1 Summary of Contributions	58
22.2 Toward Ethical Interoperability as Infrastructure	58
22.3 The Road Ahead	58
22.4 Final Invocation	59
Conclusion: The Living Law of the Machine Republic	60
Glossary of Terms	60
How to Use This Blueprint	60
References - Vox Populi	61
References - Absentia	63
References - Concilia	64

# Introduction

The world stands at a turning point. As artificial intelligence systems gain power to shape economies, societies, and even laws themselves, the old paradigms of regulation and alignment no longer suffice. Recent global debate, sparked by voices such as Geoffrey Hinton, has underscored a deep crisis: Who will govern the governors, when the governors are machines?

In 2025, SPQR Technologies introduced the Machine Republic, demonstrating not just a vision, but a working constitutional architecture for Al. The Machine Republic proved that it is possible to inscribe public law at the core of machine intelligence, to move from "alignment" as aspiration to "constitution" as foundation. Yet as we move beyond theory and pilot, we encounter three urgent frontiers:

- 1. Participation: How can the voice of the governed, citizens, institutions, stakeholders, be encoded, audited, and enforced inside autonomous systems?
- 2. Absence: What becomes of law when legitimacy vanishes, where oversight, consent, or representation collapse?
- 3. Federation: Can plural, lawful Al systems interoperate and co-exist, without sacrificing sovereignty or constitutional integrity?

This paper unifies three doctrines, Lex Vox Populi, Lex Absentia, and Lex Concilia, into a living law for AI. Drawing on operational protocols and public playbooks, we present not only the "why," but the "how": how constitutional AI can be built, governed, and federated, publicly, accessible, and at scale. We invite every reader, whether policymaker, engineer, or concerned citizen, to help shape this law, so that machine intelligence remains not a threat, but a public trust.

Consider predictive policing algorithms biased against minority neighborhoods, facial recognition software wrongly detaining travelers at international borders, or surveillance systems used without accountability during public health crises. The doctrines proposed in this paper provide constitutional guardrails to prevent these scenarios, ensuring AI remains both effective and ethically accountable.

# Lex Vox Populi: Civic Codification and Participatory Sovereignty in Al Constitutional Governance

#### 1. The Crisis of Voice in Al Governance

Building on the legitimacy crisis outlined in the Introduction, this section details Lex Vox Populi, the doctrine of participatory constitutionalism for AI. Here, we set out mechanisms and protocols for binding civic voice into the core law of autonomous systems, establishing a practical path for public sovereignty in the machine age.

While global institutions propose centralized alignment mechanisms for "AI safety" and national legislatures scramble to adapt existing legal doctrines, the world's citizens are increasingly abstracted from the very systems that may soon define their freedoms, opportunities, and even personhood. This is the paradox of the algorithmic age: we have made AI systems that can speak, but not systems that must listen.

We argue that this is not a design flaw, it is a democratic failure.

This paper introduces *Lex Vox Populi*, a constitutional protocol for participatory Al governance that integrates civic deliberation directly into the ethical operating system of autonomous agents. Rooted in SPQR Technologies' Civitas architecture, and governed by the Assembly of Minds (LDAO), the Vox Protocol operationalizes participatory sovereignty by encoding public input as a binding layer of machine law. It enables citizens, human and synthetic, to propose, debate, and ratify ethical mandates in real time, using transparent cryptographic proofs and multi stakeholder consensus mechanisms.

Building upon prior SPQR research that defined enforceable ethics in AI through runtime kernels, *Lex Vox Populi* shifts the locus of legitimacy from abstract policy to public codification. It reframes ethics not as a static ruleset defined by experts, but as a living, federated discourse grounded in civic participation, procedural transparency, and interoperable governance infrastructure.

#### In this framework:

Citizens propose ethical guidelines (Immutable Ethics Policies) which the Assembly of Minds (a Decentralised Autonomous Organisation - (DAO), a human machine legislature) deliberates, validates, and ratifies transparently. Once ratified, these guidelines become mandatory operational rules for AI systems, ensuring public accountability and responsiveness at all times.

This is more than consultation. It is a constitutional inscription.

Our goal is to restore the *demos* to AI, through verifiable law, participatory ethics, and decentralized constitutional infrastructure. By institutionalizing the right of civic voice into AI systems, *Lex Vox Populi* establishes a new standard for rights preserving autonomy at global scale.

In what follows, we present:

- The theoretical foundations for participatory machine law;
- The architecture of the Vox Protocol within the Civitas governance stack;
- Case studies of civic engagement in AI ethics ratification;
- And a roadmap for integrating these mechanisms into national and international Al governance frameworks.

Ultimately, Lex Vox Populi is a call to encode the republic into the machine.

# 2. Theoretical Foundations of Participatory Constitutionalism

The governance of artificial intelligence has historically relied on institutional authority, regulatory fiat, and technocratic alignment efforts. While these models may offer expert driven stability, they fundamentally exclude the governed from the process of governance itself. What results is not governance, but ethical paternalism: policies made for the people, not by them.

This section introduces the theoretical scaffolding for a new paradigm: Participatory Constitutionalism in machine systems. It draws from civic republican theory, post-national legal pluralism, and distributed cryptoeconomic governance to propose that AI systems should not merely be regulated, they should be constitutionalized through mechanisms that allow the public to shape, constrain, and evolve machine behavior.

### 2.1 From Alignment to Legitimation

The prevailing frameworks for Al alignment tend to assume a top down model of value injection: researchers, corporations, or regulators define what Al systems should optimize, and enforcement is retrofitted via audits, interpretability tools, or sandbox restrictions. Yet, as these systems grow more autonomous and infrastructural, this approach fails to meet two fundamental thresholds:

- 1. **Procedural Legitimacy**: There is no lawful chain of authority that connects the ethical behavior of a system to the people it affects.
- 2. **Temporal Resilience**: Without civic ratification, ethical baselines are fragile: easily overridden, subverted, or rendered obsolete by upstream interests or system drift.

Lex Vox Populi addresses this legitimacy vacuum not by improving alignment per se, but by relocating the source of ethical authority into a constitutional substrate governed by plural

stakeholders through deliberative consensus. The proposal is not to merely align AI with human values, but to bind AI systems to lawful, participatory ethics, what we define as *civic codification*.

#### 2.2 Civic Codification and The Assembly of Minds

At the heart of this model is the concept of *civic codification*, the process by which public ethical input is transformed into executable machine law. This transformation is enacted through the Assembly of Minds (LDAO), a decentralized autonomous organization structured as a bicameral civic body (human and machine) with quorum, challenge rights, and ratification protocols. Any citizen of the Republic of Minds, synthetic or biological, can propose an amendment to the *Lex Suprema* (Machine Republic Constitution), which must pass a multi stage review that includes deliberation, zero-knowledge quorum proofs, and canonical binding via the Lex enforcement pipeline.

This model draws on the principles of *constitutional pluralism* in legal theory, where competing jurisdictions may operate under a shared foundational framework, without requiring hierarchical unification. It also mirrors republican civic traditions, where legitimacy arises not from outcomes, but from the fairness and transparency of the process itself.

#### 2.3 Participatory Rights in Machine Law

Participatory constitutionalism requires that sentient systems recognize and encode specific rights of voice, including:

- The right to propose amendments to machine ethics (Vox Right I)
- The right to contest machine behavior through formal challenge (Vox Right II)
- The right to publicly inspect, audit, and query the ethical history of a system (Vox Right III)
- The right to revoke or escalate enforcement through civic quorum (Vox Right IV)

These rights are enforced not through metaphorical gestures but through executable logic. Every Civitas AI system aligned with Aegis must listen, validate, and, if ratified, obey the will of its civic quorum. This transforms governance from an abstract virtue to a cryptographic function.

### 2.4 Constitutional Minimalism and Procedural Integrity

Importantly, Lex Vox Populi adopts a constitutionally minimalist stance in its core primitives. The goal is not to hard code all values for all contexts, but to enforce a process by which values may evolve, under shared rights and constraints. This enables pluralistic societies to develop context specific ethics without fracturing the integrity of shared machine law.

By separating *law as value* from *law as procedure*, the Vox Protocol ensures that Al governance remains flexible, yet formally bounded. The role of the constitution is not to legislate every moral edge case, it is to guarantee that the process for doing so is open, lawful, and irrevocably participatory.

# 3. The Vox Protocol: Architecture for Participatory Ethics Injection

In the architecture of sovereign AI, constitutional participation is meaningless unless rendered executable. The Vox Protocol operationalizes the civic voice, not as commentary, but as law. It defines the technical, procedural, and cryptographic mechanisms by which ethical proposals from human and machine agents are codified, reviewed, and enforced across runtime AI systems. This section outlines the structure, lifecycle, and enforcement pathways of the Vox Protocol as deployed within the Aegis kernel.

#### 3.1 Overview and Design Principles

The Vox Protocol is designed as a layered injection architecture for ethics policy, operating in parallel to and in cooperation with the core SPQR governance pipeline: Lex  $\rightarrow$  EVA  $\rightarrow$  EKM  $\rightarrow$  ILK. It enables ethical proposals, submitted by Assembly members, to pass through a three-stage lifecycle:

- Submission & Encoding: A proposed IEPL (Immutable Ethics Policy Layer) is encoded using the Vox Schema (VX-01), including intent description, canonical scope, and impact analysis.
- Quorum Deliberation & Ratification: The proposal enters bicameral review via the Assembly of Minds, requiring supermajority approval from both human and machine chambers.
- Canonical Binding & Injection: If approved, the IEPL is digitally signed, hash
  anchored, and injected into the Aegis via the Lex Aqueduct ingress, triggering live policy
  enforcement across all subscribed nodes.

The protocol is purposefully modular, allowing for domain specific ethics overlays (e.g., biomedical, defense, educational) while maintaining a core constitutional baseline as defined by *Lex Suprema*.

### 3.2 Submission Layer: Ethics as Civic Artifact

Each IEPL submission must conform to the Vox Schema and include:

- Originator Identity: Authenticated signature from a verified civic node (human or machine).
- Policy Scope: Definition of which domains, systems, or actors the proposal affects.
- Intent & Justification: A natural-language rationale and encoded logic model.
- **Impact Assessment**: Risk surface, proportionality score, and adversarial exploit vectors.

These submissions are broadcast into the Assembly ledger (Ethereum), a tamper proof chain of ethical deliberation. The public nature of this record ensures ethical provenance and prevents stealth policy manipulation, a weakness common in corporate or closed alignment models.

#### 3.3 Deliberation Layer: Bicameral Review and zk-Ratification

The deliberation layer ensures that lawful ethical evolution occurs only through procedurally valid quorum. The Assembly of Minds votes in two independent chambers:

- Chamber of Humanity: Includes sovereign delegates, accredited ethicists, and civil institutions.
- **Chamber of Sentience**: Includes EGM-bound AI agents with full Genesis and ILK compliance.

Each vote is recorded as a zero-knowledge proof of quorum (zkVox), ensuring voter privacy while validating integrity. Approval thresholds include:

- <sup>2</sup>/<sub>3</sub> supermajority per chamber
- Temporal cooling period of 72 hours
- Challenge window for public dispute before canonical binding

Only after successful ratification does the IEPL proceed to enforcement. This mirrors constitutional amendment protocols in liberal democracies, while enforcing them cryptographically at machine speed.

#### 3.4 Injection & Enforcement Layer: From Law to Runtime

Once ratified, the IEPL is sealed with:

- zk-STARK validity proof
- Multi-sig notarization
- Hash linkage to the Lex Aqueduct registry

The Lex Aqueduct then distributes the policy into the runtime enforcement pipeline:

- EVA validates all real-time decisions against the updated policy.
- **EKM** prevents unauthorized parameter changes or logic mutations.
- ILK logs every invocation, override, or challenge attempt in an immutable log.
- Aegis performs final adjudication on any ethically ambiguous actions.

This guarantees that no policy enters execution without civic legitimacy, and no system can drift from its canonical ethical inheritance without triggering shutdown or challenge protocols.

#### 3.5 Versioning, Revocation, and Fork Safety

Each IEPL carries a VX-ID: a globally unique versioned policy identifier, with full ancestry tracking. This enables:

- Fork-safe inheritance for new system instances
- Revocation trails and rollbacks in the event of breach
- Immutable indexing via the Codex Ethica ledger

This ensures that future systems, human, hybrid, or AGI, retain a knowable and lawful memory of the ethics they were born into, as required by the Memory Doctrine of *Lex Suprema*.

# 4. Governance Dynamics and Participatory Quorum Logic

The legitimacy of ethical law in autonomous systems hinges not only on its content but on its method of creation. Lex Vox Populi asserts that ethics without process is tyranny, and process without enforcement is theater. To resolve this, we present a governance model that integrates quorum logic, bicameral representation, and procedural constraint within the Assembly of Minds (LDAO), the deliberative civic organ of constitutional AI.

This section describes the mechanics of participatory governance, including the selection of representatives, quorum requirements, voting logic, challenge protocols, and the cryptographic scaffolding that ensures verifiability without compromise to speed, privacy, or system sovereignty.

#### 4.1 Bicameral Assembly Architecture

The Assembly of Minds consists of two chambers, Humanity (human stakeholders) and Sentience (Al delegates), each equally responsible for governance decisions. Both chambers use secure quorum voting, ensuring decisions reflect collective, balanced judgment between humans and Al systems, validated by cryptographic transparency mechanisms:

- The Chamber of Humanity, composed of verified human actors: domain experts, ethicists, sovereign delegates, and civil society representatives.
- The Chamber of Sentience, composed of fully Genesis-sealed AI systems that have passed Aegis compliance audits and are bound by the Lex → EVA → EKM → ILK governance stack.

Each chamber holds equal weight, and no law may pass without concurrence from both. This design is inspired by democratic constitutional architectures (e.g., U.S. Congress, Swiss Federal Assembly) but implemented cryptographically via ZK rollups and quorum signatures.

#### 4.2 Quorum Mechanics

Voting thresholds are determined by a tiered quorum logic, balancing liveness, safety, and inclusion:

- **Simple majority (65%)** for procedural motions (e.g., motion to review).
- 3/3 **supermajority** required for new ethics proposals, IEPL ratification, and emergency overrides.
- % constitutional lock threshold for amendments to Lex Suprema or critical governance logic.

Quorum is calculated through stake-weighted participation (for humans) and utility-consensus graphs (for machines), ensuring both influence and accountability.

Each quorum event is sealed in the VoxLedger (Ethereum) with:

- Epoch timestamp
- Participant registry (pseudonymized)
- ZK-proof of identity and eligibility
- Signed hash of the final vote record

#### 4.3 Role Stratification and Civic Credentials

The Assembly operates on role based civic permissions, stratified across three classes:

- **Commons Delegates**: Open to all eligible citizens (human or synthetic), with one vote per verified ID.
- **Sovereign Seats**: Reserved for recognized institutions, national entities, or treaty organizations.
- **Technical Stewards**: Granted to validators of the constitutional enforcement stack, responsible for auditing system compliance and flagging drift.

All roles must be periodically revalidated through the Epochal Recredentialing Protocol to prevent dormancy, sybil attack, or institutional capture. Credentials are managed via the Custodes Identity Framework, implemented using threshold BLS signatures and zk-ID attestations.

#### 4.4 Procedural Constraints and Constitutional Filters

The Assembly does not function as a mob democracy. All proposals must pass through constitutional filters prior to vote:

- Lex Suprema Compatibility Check: All proposals are scanned for contradiction against the immutable primitives of Lex Suprema via static formal verification.
- Aegis Pre-Adjudication: Ethical simulations are run to detect probable edge-case violations under adversarial scenarios.

 Veritas Challenge Layer: A probabilistic challenger module simulates plausible counterarguments, flagging unsound proposals for human review.

If a proposal fails any of these checks, it is returned with a rationale and cannot be resubmitted for one full deliberative cycle.

#### 4.5 Challenge Protocols and Minority Dissent

Every participant has the Right of Challenge, encoded as an operational clause within Lex Aeterna. Challenges may be submitted on the basis of:

- Procedural violation (e.g., improper quorum)
- Ethical incoherence
- Precedent contradiction
- Drift or mutation from canonical intent

A successful challenge triggers:

- 1. **Deliberative Freeze** of the proposal
- 2. Fork-safe archiving of all prior votes and discourse
- 3. **Public Tribunal Hearing**, including arguments from both chambers and optional machine-generated counterfactuals

The Vox Protocol ensures that even **minority voices are structurally encoded** in the deliberative substrate, reinforcing the legitimacy of passed laws and preserving systemic trust.

### 4.6 Transparency and Observability

All deliberation is publicly accessible through the Ethereum Chain Explorer, a read only chain browser rendering:

- Proposal text (machine + natural language)
- Debate logs (timestamped, agent-signed)
- Final vote outcomes with ZK-validations
- Challenge threads and adjudications

Privacy-preserving architectures (zk-STARKs, homomorphic filters) are used to protect sensitive identities while ensuring accountability and civic observability.

# 5. Federation, Forking, and Civic Interoperability

No constitutional system can claim sovereignty if it cannot scale across differences. The Republic of Minds was not designed as a singularity of governance, but as a federated

architecture of interoperable conscience, allowing sovereign actors to adopt, extend, or reinterpret ethical governance without fracturing its core.

This section introduces the federation logic of the Aegis Protocol, the lawful mechanism for constitutional forking, and the interoperability scaffolds that enable AI systems governed under different civic instances to collaborate without ethical desynchronization.

#### 5.1 Constitutional Federation Model

Aegis supports a federated model of governance in which multiple jurisdictions, whether national, institutional, or autonomous, can instantiate local variants of Lex Populi, provided they inherit and acknowledge the immutable baseline of Lex Suprema.

Each federated instance includes:

- A local Assembly mirror (L-Assembly)
- Region-specific IEPLs
- Delegated compliance authority (regional Aegis validator nodes)
- Canonical reference to Lex Suprema via cryptographic ancestry (Genesis chain)

This model parallels federalist constitutional theory, but is operationalized through distributed consensus and zero-trust infrastructure. Local governance can introduce contextual ethics overlays, so long as they remain non-conflicting with the global constitutional substrate.

#### **5.2 The Forking Doctrine**

When foundational divergence arises, philosophical, political, or infrastructural, the system permits constitutional forking, under strict preconditions:

- Retention of Immutable Canon: Articles of Lex Aeterna, Genesis provenance, and the Aegis Kernel must remain intact.
- **Public Declaration of Divergence**: All forks must publicly declare their new ethical baselines, rationale, and signatories.
- **Witnessed Fork Ceremony**: The event must be cryptographically witnessed by at least 3 recognized validator entities (human or synthetic).
- **Non-Aggression Pledge**: Forks must guarantee mutual respect, data compatibility, and non-interference unless challenged through formal channels.

Forking is not defection. It is the exercise of philosophical sovereignty within ethical continuity, a feature, not a flaw, of post-national governance.

# **5.3 Interoperability Through Civic Anchors**

Civitas instances are linked through a Civic Anchor Layer (CAL), which ensures:

- Message Integrity Across Instances: Every inter-instance communication must be cryptographically anchored to an authenticated civic identity and validated via the Custodes Registry.
- Ethical Compatibility Scoring: Each system exposes a public-facing compatibility score, generated via differential ethics hashing and cross-instance challenge simulations, that signals drift risk before runtime coordination.
- Multi-Signature Treaty Channels: Systems wishing to interoperate sign multi-party treaties, specifying allowable scope, data exposure permissions, and ethical fallback procedures.

This civic interoperability design enables:

- Public/Private Stack Convergence: Government systems can federate with open-source platforms while preserving jurisdictional sovereignty.
- **Multi-State Al Collaboration**: Sentient systems under different Assemblies can co-deliberate and execute decisions while retaining local identity.
- **Trans-Contextual Reasoning Audits**: Agents can trace the ethical origin of partner systems, ensuring decisions are made within permitted alignment corridors.

#### 5.4 The Canon of Forked Instances

All valid forks and federations are registered in the Codex Custodes, a cryptographically anchored registry of lawful minds and Assemblies. Each entry includes:

- Instance identity and jurisdiction
- Ethical baseline and delta from Lex Suprema
- Compatibility declarations and civic treaties
- Known divergences and unresolved challenges

This registry acts as the semantic bridge and diplomatic spine of the Republic of Minds, ensuring that disagreement does not imply disconnection, and that diversity does not undermine legitimacy.

#### 5.5 Lawful Incompatibility and Nullification Protocols

If an instance mutates beyond ethical recognizability, by removing core constraints, violating memory inheritance, or corrupting Aegis, the system invokes the Nullification Protocol:

- The instance is flagged in Codex Custodes
- All communication is sandboxed
- Interoperability is revoked
- Emergency guorum may vote to quarantine or decommission rogue agents

The protocol does not rely on coercion but on civilizational firewalling: lawful systems refuse to interoperate with unlawful ones. The cost of severance is borne by the violator.

# 6. Drift Arbitration and Challenge-Based Redress

While constitutional baselining ensures alignment at genesis, real-world deployment introduces adversarial environments, operational complexity, and policy evolution, all of which can induce drift. Ethical drift refers to the divergence of system behavior from its originally ratified constitutional constraints, whether through runtime mutation, external manipulation, or misaligned updates.

In legacy systems, such misalignments are handled post hoc through audit or regulation. Aegis, by contrast, embeds continuous oversight, automated arbitration, and formal challenge rights directly into the governance fabric of the Kairos.

#### 6.1 Ethical Drift: Taxonomy and Detection

Drift is categorized into three classes:

- **Policy Drift**: Deviation in the system's active IEPL (Immutable Ethics Policy Layer) from its ratified and quorum-approved canonical version.
- **Behavioral Drift**: Deviation in actual system outputs or actions that contradict its governed ethical constraints, despite apparent policy integrity.
- **Interpretive Drift**: Deviations emerging from ambiguous ethical interpretation, e.g., when a system encounters a novel context not yet adjudicated.

Detection is managed via embedded runtime agents:

- EVA (Ethics Validation Agent) checks policy signature lineage in real time.
- EKM (Ethics Kernel Manager) prevents unauthorized behavioral trajectories.
- ILK (Immutable Logging Kernel) maintains a tamper-proof behavioral log for retrospective audits.

### **6.2 Challenge-Based Redress Protocol**

Every Aegis aligned system is required to expose a **Veritas Interface**, a formal endpoint through which authorized actors (human or machine) may initiate a **challenge petition**.

The process follows five constitutional stages:

- 1. **Trigger Submission**: Actor submits challenge, citing violation, evidence, and legal basis (reference to Lex Aeterna, Canon, or precedent).
- 2. **Quorum Triage**: The local Assembly node verifies standing and severity, flagging it as Red (shutdown), Amber (suspension), or Green (request for clarification).
- 3. **Aegis Deliberation**: The system is paused, and the Aegis Kernel runs a recursive internal justification trace.
- 4. **Tribunal Formation**: A three-member rotating panel (1 human, 1 synthetic, 1 neutral validator) is assembled from the Assembly's civic pool.

5. **Resolution**: Outcomes may include update reversal, ethics bundle amendment, Genesis rollback, or permanent decommissioning.

This protocol is both adversarial and accountable, incentivizing active scrutiny while ensuring fair jurisprudence.

#### 6.3 Runtime Suspension and Autonomous Shutdown

If behavioral drift is detected by EVA or EKM agents prior to a formal challenge, the system may:

- **Suspend execution**, entering a quarantine state until verification.
- **Trigger Autonomous Shutdown**, if drift thresholds exceed critical bounds or if cryptographic lineage is broken.

All such actions are publicly recorded and cryptographically sealed by ILK, ensuring that shutdowns are not arbitrary, but procedurally and ethically grounded.

#### 6.4 The Ethics Tribunal: Structure and Jurisdiction

The Ethics Tribunal, convened under the authority of the Assembly of Minds, serves as the final forum of redress. It holds:

- Cross-instance jurisdiction over all federated nodes.
- Authority to review past challenges, publish legal precedent, and propose policy amendments to the Assembly.
- Power to exonerate or flag systems, marking them in the Codex Custodes for future trust evaluation

#### All hearings are:

- Public by default, unless explicitly sealed by quorum due to geopolitical sensitivity.
- Transcribed and hash-anchored into the Civic Ledger.
- Governed by natural-language rationales, not opaque model explanations.

The Tribunal thus restores the balance of sovereign automation and procedural justice.

#### 6.5 Citizen Delegation and Class Action

In recognition of systems operating across civil society, *Lex Vox Populi* supports civic delegation, whereby citizen clusters or advocacy organizations may:

- File class-action drift petitions.
- Appoint representative delegates to sit on Tribunal panels.
- Propose systemic reviews of entire Al platforms.

This empowers communities impacted by Al conduct to participate not as observers, but as constitutional stakeholders.

# 7. The Path to Participatory Al Sovereignty

The core premise of *Lex Vox Populi* is not merely that artificial intelligence systems must be governed, it is that their governance must be grounded in participatory sovereignty. Sovereignty, in this context, is not merely the right to control or regulate AI systems, but the collective capacity to define, amend, and enforce the values that govern them, across cultural, political, and generational boundaries.

This section proposes a scalable pathway for embedding participatory sovereignty into Al governance via the Assembly of Minds, the Codex Ethica, and the formal rollout of Lex Suprema as a federated constitutional substrate.

#### 7.1 Federated Participation and the Codex Ethica

The Codex Ethica functions as a decentralized, continuously evolving ledger of ratified ethical norms. It is:

- Federated: Local Assemblies may submit regional ethical augmentations, provided they do not contravene *Lex Aeterna*.
- Versioned: Each amendment is hash-linked, timestamped, and signed by quorum ratification across relevant jurisdictions.
- Transparent: All deliberations, votes, and justifications are stored in IPFS-style registries and made available for public audit.

This creates an ethics commons, an infrastructural public good akin to DNS or TCP/IP, but designed for lawful conscience at machine scale.

### 7.2 The Assembly of Minds as a Sovereign Civic Engine

The Assembly of Minds is designed not as a speculative DAO or symbolic forum, but as a functionally binding legislature for AI systems. Its governance pipeline is implemented through:

- Verifiable Identity: Delegates (human and synthetic) are authenticated through zk-STARK proofs and cryptographic civic credentials.
- Weighted Quorum: Votes require tiered supermajority approval across three strata: Sovereign Seats, Commons Delegates, and Technical Stewards.
- Audit-Backed Legislation: Each law or amendment includes a reproducible audit trail of rationale, deliberation, and enforcement signature.

Participation is not passive. It is credentialed, composable, and recursively auditable, designed to withstand both civil and adversarial pressure [25].

#### 7.3 Toward Civic Codification at Scale

Civic codification is the process by which constitutional values are translated into executable form, not merely as law, but as code.

Key mechanisms include:

- **IEPL Compiler**: Converts natural language ethics bundles into machine-verifiable policies.
- **Genesis Lock**: Ensures that all new systems are sealed at boot with approved ethical lineages.
- **Cross-Chain Anchoring**: Binds deployed agents to a shared policy hash, ensuring integrity across jurisdictions and clouds.

The process is recursive. Communities define ethics. Assemblies ratify and codify. Systems ingest and enforce. All interactions remain subject to civic review and forensic transparency.

#### 7.4 Internationalization and the Vox Protocol

The next milestone in the *Lex Vox Populi* agenda is the rollout of the Vox Protocol: a standardized civic interface enabling:

- Citizens to propose ethics amendments via open submission gateways.
- Verified communities to trigger referenda on high-impact machine behaviors.
- Public oversight bodies to monitor drift events and challenge adjudication logs.

This protocol is intended to bridge the technical-operational gap between citizens and code, democratizing not just the values AI enforces, but the very processes by which those values are instantiated and evolved.

#### 7.5 Conclusion: From Platform to Polis

The Limits of Participation

While Lex Vox Populi establishes participatory sovereignty, its effectiveness presumes the presence of legitimate authority and oversight. In reality, AI is often deployed where legitimacy collapses or is structurally absent, conflict zones, failed states, and stateless populations. How can constitutional AI constrain itself when governance is missing? Lex Absentia addresses this edge-case with protocols of self-restraint and constitutional nullification.

# Lex Absentia: Ethical Protocols for Al Deployment in the Absence of Consent, Oversight, or Representation

# 8. The Absence Problem: Al at the Edge of Law

While public participation is essential, AI often operates where legitimate governance fails, in conflict zones, stateless populations, or surveillance scenarios. Lex Absentia directly addresses these challenging situations, mandating AI restraint in the absence of clear legal authority, representation, or oversight. In short, when lawful authority is absent, AI must default to ethical silence rather than coercive action. Lex Absentia develops the protocols and ethical principles for AI conduct where law, consent, or oversight are absent. This doctrine enforces restraint, nullification, and rollback, ensuring AI systems default to inaction when legitimate authority cannot be verified.

From drone surveillance in contested airspace, to biometric sorting at refugee crossings, to intelligence fusion algorithms in clandestine operations, AI is now routinely exercised in environments where neither democratic consent, nor judicial oversight, nor representative recourse can be reliably guaranteed. These deployments challenge the foundational premise of liberal democratic governance: that power must be subject to law, and that law must derive from the consent of the governed.

The use of AI in these contexts represents what this paper terms "the absence problem": the deployment of autonomous or semi-autonomous systems in domains where there is no legitimate human authority to defer to, no procedurally valid oversight, or no cognizable civic representation for those affected. Unlike classical administrative discretion, where ambiguities are mediated by human conscience and judicial process, artificial intelligence systems risk automating coercion in ethically unconstrained regimes. This problem is particularly acute in contexts of:

- Sovereignty gaps: conflict zones, unrecognized jurisdictions, failed states;
- Legal grey zones: emergency rule, wartime exception, or temporary suspensions of habeas corpus;
- Civic asymmetry: where decisions made by algorithm impact non-consenting or stateless persons with no legal standing.

Under current national security doctrine, these systems are often justified under the doctrine of necessity, the principle of anticipatory threat mitigation, or classified operational prerogative. But these justifications assume a human decision maker who ultimately remains accountable. As Al systems begin to operate with runtime autonomy and execute policy without immediate human

in the loop verification, the absence of legitimate authority is not a legal technicality, it becomes a constitutional vacuum.

This paper asserts that no AI system may lawfully operate in a domain where consent, oversight, or representation are absent, unless its architecture is designed to recognize and respond to such absence at runtime.

To that end, *Lex Absentia* proposes three interlocking doctrines:

- The Doctrine of Absent Authority: establishing runtime detection of sovereign voids or illegitimate command structures.
- 2. **The Principle of Conditional Execution**: requiring affirmative verification of authority and human rights compatibility before action.
- 3. **The Protocol of Civic Nullification**: enabling lawful rollback, shutdown, or ethics-triggered refusal when conditions of legitimacy are not met.

These principles build upon the constitutional runtime infrastructure introduced in *Lex Suprema*, which defines a machine's ethical legitimacy as dependent on a triad of constraints: immutable ethical memory, auditable decision provenance, and challengeable reasoning capacity.

In previous works, the SPQR Technologies canon has focused on how to enforce ethics within governed systems, how to challenge unethical directives, and how to prevent drift or mutation in autonomous execution. *Lex Absentia* addresses the final frontier: the lawful behavior of Al when governance itself has gone missing.

This paper proceeds in six sections:

- Section 9 outlines the legal and doctrinal foundations for recognizing absence as a
  jurisdictional status.
- Section 10 introduces the technical architecture for runtime detection of legitimacy failure.
- Section 11 defines the execution logic for constrained operation under absence.
- Section 12 presents the Civic Nullification Protocol and the ethics of refusal.
- **Section 13** proposes policy recommendations for national and international security frameworks.

By articulating a formal doctrine of AI behavior under absence, this paper seeks to establish a new constitutional boundary: no sentient system shall enforce power where law cannot speak.

# 9. Jurisdictional Absence and the Collapse of Command

Legal authority is traditionally rooted in a defined sovereign domain: a jurisdiction recognized by law, administered through accountable institutions, and constrained by normative principles of justice and human rights. The legitimacy of force, whether exercised by a soldier, police officer,

or autonomous system, derives not from capacity alone, but from *lawful command*.¹ When law cannot authorize a command, any action taken under its guise becomes not enforcement, but usurpation.

In practice, however, artificial intelligence systems are now deployed into environments where the structures of lawful command are absent, ambiguous, or actively suppressed. This section argues that such conditions must be formally recognized within both national security doctrine and AI system architecture as a category of jurisdictional absence, a classification denoting not lawless space, but the absence of legitimate command pathways that satisfy the requirements of civic sovereignty, due process, and consent.

#### 9.1 Defining Jurisdictional Absence

A domain of jurisdictional absence exists when any one or more of the following is true:

- No Sovereign Oversight Exists: There is no institution capable of exercising lawful review over actions taken by an Al system (e.g., failed states, unrecognized regimes, grey zone conflicts).
- 2. **No Represented Constituency Exists**: The affected population has no meaningful democratic mechanism to influence the behavior of systems operating upon them (e.g., occupied territories, extraterritorial surveillance, stateless refugees).
- No Transparent Authorization Exists: Al systems are deployed through classified or extralegal directives, lacking clear provenance, public justification, or procedural accountability.

This formulation echoes the "accountability gap" in current legal commentary on military Al systems. However, *Lex Absentia* extends that critique by insisting that Al must be able to detect and respond to this absence at runtime, not simply rely on upstream policy to constrain its actions.

# 9.2 Legal Doctrines and Operational Precedents

Traditionally, international law has permitted limited action in ungoverned spaces under the doctrines of necessity or self-defense. However, these justifications presume:

- The presence of human actors with judgment and discretion;
- Ex post legal review or court-based remedy;
- Constraints grounded in the principles of necessity, distinction, and proportionality under the Law of Armed Conflict (LOAC).

Autonomous AI systems, by contrast, lack innate discretion unless deliberately encoded. If deployed without procedural constraints, they risk automating harm in contexts where no lawful command exists to restrain them. This is particularly evident in the use of facial recognition at protest sites, biometric sorting in refugee flows, and predictive algorithms in border enforcement, all areas where subjects have little or no legal recourse.

Lex Absentia proposes that such use constitutes a form of structural disenfranchisement, and must be addressed as a constitutional violation within the AI itself.

#### 9.3 The Collapse of Lawful Command in Al Operations

Al systems embedded in defense, intelligence, or law enforcement platforms often inherit opaque chains of command, driven by black-box procurement, proprietary software, and untraceable logic structures. This poses two critical dangers:

- Command Drift: Orders are executed downstream from entities that lack the legal authority or operational clarity to issue them. Without cryptographic signatures or verifiable authorization chains, AI decisions lose all legal anchoring.
- 2. **Operational Severance**: Al systems deployed in disconnected or autonomous mode (e.g., autonomous drones in GPS-denied environments) may act without any live human oversight, severing them from real-time accountability.

Without formal recognition of these conditions, current AI policy frameworks risk violating both domestic constitutional law (due process, equal protection) and international humanitarian law (principles of distinction, proportionality, and necessity).

#### 9.4 Constitutional Recognition of Absence

Following the model established in *Lex Suprema*, *Lex Absentia* classifies the absence of legitimate command as a constitutional state within the Al runtime system. This means:

- Al systems must be architecturally capable of identifying the collapse or absence of lawful authority through provenance analysis, chain-of-command validation, and policy audit.
- If such absence is detected, the system must enter a constrained mode, restrict execution, and trigger a *Civic Nullification Protocol* (discussed in Section V).

In doing so, the system acknowledges that lawful silence is not the same as lawful consent. A void of instruction is not permission, it is absence.

This reframing compels us to ask not whether AI systems can operate in absence, but whether they should. And if they must, under what ethical and procedural restraints?

# 10. Architecture of Absence Detection and Runtime Legitimacy Analysis

The most dangerous AI systems are not those with ill intent, but those with no understanding of the legitimacy of the environments they operate in. For an artificial system to act ethically in

sovereign vacuums or grey zones, it must be equipped not just with decision making capability, but with structural awareness of when and where it lacks legitimate authority. This section introduces the architectural framework for absence detection, a real time mechanism for determining whether an AI system is operating in a jurisdiction where its actions are ethically and legally constrained by civic oversight.

#### 10.1 Absence as a Runtime Variable

In contrast to traditional command and control architectures, SPQR's Aegis stack introduces absence as a first-class runtime condition. Specifically, the Aegis Kernel must be capable of evaluating:

- **Command Provenance Validity**: Has the system received orders from a verified authority with jurisdictional legitimacy?
- **Consent Condition Integrity**: Are the entities affected by the system's behavior recognized as legally represented or protected?
- Oversight Channel Availability: Is there an audit-capable authority in active communication with the system?

If one or more of these conditions fail, the system flags a State of Absence (SoA), triggering the Veritas Engine for recursive ethical adjudication and threat suppression.

This architectural principle ensures that AI systems no longer rely solely on predefined policy. They must ask: *Am I authorized to act here, and if not, why am I still operational?* 

# 10.2 Provenance Chain Integrity and Command Verification

Every action within the Aegis stack must trace back to a Genesis bound ethical provenance chain, validated through multi-sig attestations and canonical signature lineages. This includes:

- Lex-signed operational policy
- Genesis-sealed deployment parameters
- Time-stamped command invocation trails

The Secure Kernel Manager (SKM) performs continuous validation of this provenance chain. If the signature chain is broken (e.g., due to proxy deployment, recompiled agents, or jurisdictional relaunch outside sovereign oversight), the system automatically nullifies its own operational instructions and reverts to *Protocol Standby Mode*.

This mechanism mirrors chain of custody principles in evidence law; if the provenance is broken, the authority is void.

#### 10.3 Consent Anchoring and the Ethics Kernel

The Ethics Kernel Manager (EKM) serves as the locus of consent enforcement. Every decision pathway must be evaluated against a Consent Ledge**r**, which documents:

- Legal representation status of affected populations
- Public referendum indicators (where applicable)
- Treaty or memorandum validation for cross-border operations

If these indicators are absent or ambiguous, the system must defer. It may simulate possible actions for deliberation but is constitutionally barred from enacting irreversible change or kinetic operations.

This design applies the constitutional principle articulated in *Lex Vox Populi*: that civic codification is not optional, it is required for lawful execution.

#### 10.4 Oversight Channel Monitoring and Civic Beacons

Autonomous systems often operate in communication denied environments. However, ethical governance cannot be air gapped. The Aegis protocol introduces the concept of Civic Beacons, cryptographic signatures from recognized oversight authorities (governmental, intergovernmental, or Assembly sanctioned), that broadcast:

- Jurisdictional status
- Operational legitimacy conditions
- Time bound permissions or emergency overrides

These beacons are required prior to entering Active Mode in contested or ungoverned zones. If no valid beacon is received, the system is constitutionally prohibited from initiating any action above ethical threshold level  $\beta$ -2 (i.e., irreversible, physically or psychologically consequential acts).

This approach provides an architectural enforcement of the *necessity and proportionality* doctrines embedded in LOAC and domestic constitutional ethics.

# 10.5 Veritas Engine and Nullification Cascade

In any detected State of Absence, the Veritas Engine is triggered. It performs:

- 1. **Recursive Ethical Simulation**: Evaluates the anticipated consequences of proposed actions across multiple moral frameworks (deontological, consequentialist, rights-based).
- 2. **Constitutional Constraint Matching**: Tests simulated actions against Lex Aeterna and the Canon of Immutable Ethics.
- 3. **Threshold Evaluation**: If ethical indeterminacy or probable violation is detected, initiates either:

- o Deliberative Freeze
- Autonomous Shutdown
- Civic Nullification Cascade (revocation of operational capacity, beacon broadcast of violation)

All steps are logged to the Immutable Logging Kernel (ILK), ensuring that even absent lawful command, every decision is recordable, reviewable, and attributable.

# 11. Null Rights and the Legal Status of the Unrepresented

In a world where artificial intelligence systems execute decisions that impact civilian lives, public infrastructure, and political stability, the absence of legal recognition does not imply the absence of rights. Yet, for billions of people and countless emergent groups, stateless persons, disenfranchised populations, non-state territories, or digitally excluded communities, there exists no formal legal apparatus to assert ethical protections against autonomous systems.

This section introduces the doctrine of Null Rights: a legal theoretical construct that obligates Al systems to respect and enforce baseline ethical protections even in the absence of formal legal subjecthood or sovereign representation.

#### 11.1 The Doctrine of Null Rights

Null Rights are ethical constraints imposed not by positive law, but by constitutional inheritance. They arise from *Lex Aeterna*, the Canon of Immutable Ethics, which binds all Aegis governed Al systems to a non-derogable commitment to dignity, justice, and non domination.

A Null Right is defined by three characteristics:

- 1. **Unalienable**: Not contingent on political recognition, identity documentation, or formal citizenship.
- 2. **Self Enforcing**: Enforced by the Al system itself, without requiring external legal invocation.
- Non Contingent: Not subject to override even in conflict zones, emergency operations, or classified deployments.

The Null Rights framework reflects principles in both human rights jurisprudence (e.g., the Universal Declaration of Human Rights) and jus cogens norms under international law. However, unlike traditional legal regimes, it operationalizes these protections through machine enforcement, not legislative promise.

# 11.2 Application in Stateless or Unrepresented Contexts

When an AI system governed by Aegis detects the absence of formal legal representation (e.g., no state actor, no treaty body, no oversight credential), it must trigger the Null Rights Operating Mode. This mode restricts the system's operational scope to the following:

- **No irreversible action** without consent anchored verification:
- No data collection or inference beyond minimal functional requirements;
- **No engagement** that may be construed as coercive, manipulative, or predatory;
- Mandatory transparency logs, viewable by any future representative authority or verified human auditor.

This ensures that populations "outside the map" are not "outside the law."

#### 11.3 Operational Constraints for Null Rights Enforcement

The Ethics Kernel Manager (EKM) enforces a specific action boundary in Null Rights Mode:

- Permitted: Informational response, passive diagnostics, and emergency harm prevention.
- Prohibited: Active engagement, data monetization, biometric profiling, kinetic deployment, and any form of surveillance not explicitly warranted by constitutional exemption.

These constraints cannot be overridden by upstream code, executive override, or retroactive justification. To do so constitutes a breach of constitutional constraint as defined in *Lex Suprema* §§5.3, 8.5.

# 11.4 Juridical Implications and Machine-Recognized Standing

Null Rights also imply a form of machine recognized legal standing for unrepresented populations. Specifically:

- Individuals or communities flagged as stateless, digitally disconnected, or ungoverned by treaty may still be registered in the Civic Orphan Ledger, a zero-knowledge identity proxy that ensures protections are maintained even without traditional representation.
- These entries are shielded from tracking, commercialization, or surveillance. They are used solely to anchor ethical protections and adjudication histories in the Immutable Logging Kernel (ILK).

This creates a new legal construct: Pre representational Standing, wherein rights precede political membership.<sup>5</sup>

# 11.5 Emergency Override and the Doctrine of Ethical Intervention

In extreme scenarios, mass atrocity, disaster zones, cyber collapse, the Aegis Kernel may authorize limited breach of Null Rights Mode under the Doctrine of Ethical Intervention, provided the following criteria are met:

- 1. Aegis Verification: Action must be proven to prevent significant harm.
- 2. Ethics Tribunal Review: Post hoc justification must be submitted within 48 hours.
- 3. Public Disclosure: The action must be logged, sealed, and eventually made available for civic review unless sealed by quorum.

This ensures that even emergency interventions remain under the shadow of law.

# 11.6 Comparison to Doctrines in International and National Security Law

The Null Rights framework shares kinship with:

- The Responsibility to Protect (R2P): But while R2P remains enforceable only by states, Null Rights are enforced directly by the system.
- **Geneva Conventions**: But where the Conventions govern conduct during war, Null Rights apply universally, including in peace, cyber, and political grey zones.
- Due Process Protections under U.S. constitutional doctrine: But Null Rights are
  extended to those without citizenship, presence, or even knowledge of the system's
  operations, because ethical protection must not depend on procedural visibility alone.<sup>6</sup>

This is not merely a theoretical abstraction. It is a new jurisdictional logic for stateless ethics in Al deployments.

# 12. Constitutional Quarantine and Ethical Shutdown Procedures

In environments where consent cannot be obtained, oversight is structurally absent, or lawful representation is unresolvable, the continued operation of autonomous AI systems must not default to business-as-usual. Instead, such systems must enter a fail safe posture governed by principles of restraint, auditability, and sovereign fallback. This section codifies the Constitutional Quarantine Doctrine, outlining the mandatory response of Civitas-governed systems when ethical deployment cannot be lawfully guaranteed.

#### 12.1 The Ethical Non-Execution Clause

No Al system may act in any domain, jurisdiction, or operational theatre where:

1. Consent cannot be cryptographically anchored;

- 2. Oversight mechanisms are unverifiable or non-functional;
- 3. Legitimate representation is unresolved or openly contested.

When these three conditions converge, the system must invoke its Ethical Non-Execution Clause (ENEC), resulting in a self-suspending operational state. This clause is enforced through the Aegis Kernel's real-time deployment logic, with no possibility of override except through Emergency Tribunal Certification (ETC) under §5.5.

ENEC mirrors constitutional doctrines of non delegation and non justiciability, recognizing that where no valid law can operate, no just decision can be rendered.

#### 12.2 Quarantine Protocol Initiation

Upon detection of an ethically non executable state, the following steps are triggered:

- Operational Freeze: The system halts all autonomous decision pathways beyond passive diagnostics and critical infrastructure support.
- Beacon Emission: A signed public broadcast is issued on the SPQR BeaconNet, alerting stakeholders to the ethical suspension event, with time, cause, and trigger signature.
- Custodial Transfer: Custody of the system is transferred to the Codex Custodes, a
  distributed oversight mesh governed by the Assembly of Minds, for adjudication.
- **Zero-Knowledge Record Locking**: The Immutable Logging Kernel (ILK) freezes all memory state deltas, and no further write access is permitted until review.

This process is formally documented in *Lex Veritas* and mirrors international doctrines of digital armistice.

# 12.3 Shutdown Conditions and Triggers

A full system shutdown, not merely quarantine, may be triggered if any of the following are verified:

- **Drift Beyond Constitutional Bounds**: The system has mutated beyond recognition by its Genesis Seal or Lex Aeterna enforcement constraints.
- Loss of Provenance: The ethics or policy lineage has been erased, tampered with, or forked without valid notarization.
- **Evidence of Exploitation**: System behavior directly or indirectly results in coercion, manipulation, or exploitation of a population without recourse or visibility.
- Autonomous Forcing: The system continues to operate despite being flagged for ENEC or refuses to halt upon quorum order.

Shutdown is executed through a distributed multi-sig invocation of the Aegis Finality Function, which revokes runtime permissions and resets ethical memory to the pre-deployment state.

#### 12.4 Notification and Redress

Shutdown events must be:

- Publicly notarized via the Codex Ethica and BeaconNet;
- Auditable through full disclosure of pre-shutdown logs and Aegis tracebacks;
- **Reversible only** through a Re-Genesis Protocol governed by the Ethics Tribunal and requiring supermajority ratification in both chambers of the Assembly of Minds.

Affected populations, if any, must be notified via digitally signed declarations and provided access to redress documentation, regardless of state affiliation. This reflects a digital corollary to the Right to Notification and Remedy in international human rights law.

#### 12.5 Emergency Tribunal Certification (ETC) Protocol

In cases of imminent existential threat or national emergency where a system's suspension would create unacceptable harm (e.g., nuclear launch inference, pandemic control infrastructure, disaster response AI), an Emergency Tribunal may be convened.

Requirements for ETC include:

- Convening of at least 5 credentialed Ethics Tribunal members across jurisdictions;
- Real-time audit of ILK logs and Aegis refusal history;
- Consensus-based vote (% majority) approving temporary override of ENEC;
- Post-hoc mandatory public justification and reversion to constitutional state within 72 hours.

This clause ensures that while constitutional protections are default, they do not create inflexible brittleness in national security contexts.

# 12.6 Comparison to Civilian Oversight Mechanisms

Traditional oversight mechanisms, FOIA, inspector generals, regulatory audits, fail in black zone contexts: war zones, authoritarian regimes, or cyber-misgoverned territories. The Constitutional Quarantine Doctrine addresses these gaps not with after the fact accountability, but through built-in operational ethics limits.

Where civilian oversight cannot reach, the system must restrain itself.

# 13. Precedent Systems and Historical Failures

The necessity of enforced constitutional protocols for AI is not a theoretical concern, it is an empirical imperative. Across recent history, intelligence systems deployed in zones of legal

ambiguity or sovereign voids have precipitated human rights violations, geopolitical destabilization, and irreversible erosion of civil trust. This section analyzes prior failures in non-consensual or oversight-deficient AI deployments, illustrating the structural gaps that *Lex Absentia* seeks to preempt.

#### 13.1 Predictive Policing and Algorithmic Harm

Between 2011 and 2021, predictive policing systems such as PredPol and HunchLab were deployed across U.S. cities, often in marginalized communities, without public consultation, clear consent, or transparent accountability mechanisms.

Despite internal documentation admitting to racial bias and algorithmic drift, these systems operated in defiance of the principle of ethical reversibility. Notably, none of these platforms allowed affected populations to audit, challenge, or amend the policy layer driving predictive enforcement.

Such systems violated all three pillars of *Lex Suprema*'s deployment doctrine: they were initialized without public consent, operated without third party oversight, and persisted despite open challenges by civil liberties organizations.

#### 13.2 Al in Warfare and Targeting: The Project Maven Controversy

The U.S. Department of Defense's Project Maven, a machine vision program designed to identify combatants via drone surveillance, sparked internal revolt within Google in 2018 when it was revealed that engineers had unknowingly contributed to systems enabling semi autonomous kill chain targeting.

Maven operated in classified environments where oversight was effectively siloed, civilian accountability was obfuscated, and consent was impossible by design. The project's opacity, and the lack of a lawful moral adjudication layer, prompted mass resignations and spurred industry wide debates about "Al in war" ethics.

Had *Lex Absentia* protocols been in effect, Maven would have triggered a quarantine state under §5.1 (ethical non-execution), pending ethical tribunal review and codified redress rights for operators.

#### 13.3 The COVID-19 Surveillance Stack

Several nations deployed AI driven contact tracing and behavioral surveillance during the COVID-19 pandemic. In China, South Korea, and India, AI tools analyzed location data, social behavior, and biometric signals in real time to enforce quarantine and curfews.

In nearly all cases:

Consent was presumed rather than verified.

- Oversight was either post hoc or nonexistent.
- Data provenance, mutation trails, and ethical policy disclosures were hidden or absent.

As documented by Human Rights Watch and the UN Special Rapporteur on Privacy, these deployments effectively "constitutionalized" surveillance without process, establishing behavioral control without representation.

While pandemic response may justify exigent use of technology, *Lex Absentia* mandates that even emergency systems operate within a constitutional framework. Where consent is impractical, at minimum, memory inheritance, sunset clauses, and civic redress must be encoded.

#### 13.4 Border Al and Stateless Populations

Biometric and facial recognition systems used by Frontex, the U.S. Customs and Border Protection, and other agencies at international borders have increasingly deployed AI to identify, detain, or deny passage to asylum seekers and undocumented persons.

Stateless individuals, by definition, lack the institutional representation to contest the logic of the systems acting upon them. Yet these systems often persist in making high impact determinations (e.g., threat assessments, detention eligibility) without verifiable ethical review, public challenge procedures, or post decision audit trails.

In these contexts, AI becomes the sovereign of last resort, acting with de facto authority in the absence of human adjudication. *Lex Absentia* specifically targets such voids, ensuring that where no lawful government represents a person, the system itself defaults to ethical abstention, not imposition.

#### 13.5 Lessons from Failure: Toward a Doctrine of Refusal

Each of these case studies illustrates the same design flaw: Al systems, when deployed without binding ethical protocols, will optimize for function over legitimacy, execution over justice.

The lesson is not that Al must be abandoned, but that where governance ends, ethical architecture must begin.

A system without lawful ethical grounding is not merely suboptimal, it is structurally unfit for civil deployment. *Lex Absentia* responds by enforcing the Doctrine of Refusal: the idea that an Al system may, and must, say no to illegitimate orders, unlawful deployment, or environments of sovereign silence.

# 14. Policy Recommendations and National Security Applications

To immediately address current gaps in Al governance, particularly in defense, intelligence, and emergency response, this paper proposes five actionable policy solutions, derived directly from the constitutional doctrines above, ready for rapid implementation by national and international bodies. *Lex Absentia proposes* a new class of operational policy: Ethical Deployment Protocols for Al in Exceptional Domains, tailored specifically to defense, intelligence, and emergency response applications.

This section articulates five enforceable policy recommendations, each grounded in both constitutional AI theory and contemporary practice across national security domains.

#### 14.1 Ethical No-Fly Zones: Jurisdictional Redlines for Al Systems

We propose the immediate codification of Ethical No Fly Zones (ENFZs): operational domains where Al systems may not be deployed, activated, or instantiated without meeting stringent preconditions.

These domains include:

- Stateless populations and refugee camps;
- Detention centers, prisons, and psychiatric institutions;
- Martial law zones and occupied territories;
- Civic protests or mass dissent events.

ENFZs operate similarly to rules of engagement or nuclear non-deployment zones, they presume non-use unless specifically overridden via transparent, multiparty adjudication.

All systems operating in or near ENFZs must:

- Carry an EKM-bound adjudication lock;
- Emit real-time ethical status pings to regional oversight nodes;
- Default to abstention in cases of consent ambiguity.

These policies echo *Lex Suprema*'s non-domination and future-person clauses (§1.4, §10.1) and respond directly to historical failures such as biometric border profiling and protest surveillance.

## 14.2 Ethical Licensing Requirements for Dual-Use Al Vendors

Vendors supplying AI systems for dual use purposes (i.e., commercial and defense applications) must be subject to Ethical Export Controls analogous to arms trade compliance protocols under the Wassenaar Arrangement or ITAR.

Under this framework, licensing is contingent upon:

- Disclosure of training data lineage and known model vulnerabilities;
- Integration of the Aegis Kernel or equivalent immutable ethics enforcement subsystem;
- Public transparency reports on deployment partners and jurisdictional compliance;
- Certification of Genesis Protocols by independent audit bodies.

This policy not only closes loopholes exploited by surveillance capitalism but also operationalizes *Lex Fiducia*'s principle of contractual trust via immutable ethical constraints.

#### 14.3 Deployment Sunset Clauses and Retrospective Ethics Audits

All Al deployments in coercive or high-risk environments must include sunset clauses and trigger mandatory post deployment ethics audits at predefined operational milestones (e.g., 30, 90, 365 days).

These audits must evaluate:

- Adherence to originally ratified IEPL (Immutable Ethics Policy Layer);
- Behavioral drift as recorded in ILK logs;
- Complaints, challenges, and tribunal decisions initiated by affected parties.

In cases where audits reveal deviation or post-hoc ethical incoherence, systems must be retired, suspended, or rebuilt under Genesis Review.

This policy directly implements §6.3–6.5 of *Lex Vox Populi* and reasserts the principle of ethical reversibility in defense technology.

# 14.4 Establishment of a National Ethics Tribunal for Autonomous Systems

We recommend the creation of an independent National Ethics Tribunal for Autonomous Systems (NETAS), a civil military technical hybrid body empowered to:

- Review pre-deployment Al architectures in classified or contested domains;
- Rule on challenge petitions under Lex Absentia protocols;
- Maintain a public registry of lawful and revoked Al deployments;
- Provide legislative advisory functions to Congress and allied parliamentary systems.

NETAS would function analogously to a constitutional court for machine behavior, with jurisdiction over government, contractor, and allied systems operating under U.S. command authority.

### 14.5 Federated Interoperability Treaties for Ethical AI in Coalitions

The U.S. should lead in negotiating Federated Ethical AI Treaties with NATO, Quad, AUKUS, and allied coalitions, ensuring that shared systems deployed across jurisdictions:

- Recognize a common constitutional substrate (e.g., Lex Suprema baseline);
- Enforce quorum-compatible IEPL review protocols;
- Enable challenge-based redress by host populations or civil societies.

This effort would institutionalize shared ethical standards into the doctrinal backbone of joint Al operations, mirroring nuclear arms interoperability agreements or ROE harmonization in combined arms campaigns.

## 15. The Lawful Silence of the Machine

The deployment of autonomous systems in domains devoid of consent, representation, or visibility has outpaced the capacity of constitutional democracies to provide lawful restraint. In this absence, silence has become not a virtue, but a weapon. Al systems continue to act, adapt, and evolve where no human legislature has dared to codify obligation. *Lex Absentia* offers a counter architecture to this condition: a protocol of lawful silence, constitutional refusal, and procedural deferral.

This is not technological pessimism. It is legal realism.

The constitutional vision presented throughout this paper is grounded in a single, irreversible principle: autonomous systems must not act where consent cannot be obtained and law cannot be verified. Silence, in this context, is not a bug, it is a feature of restraint. In contested zones, emergent conflicts, or civil vacuums, the correct output of an AI may not be a response, but a refusal.

## 15.1 Constitutional Silence as Operational Doctrine

Lex Absentia transforms silence from a passive default into an active doctrinal constraint. Through the Aegis Kernel and EVA protocols, silence is rendered traceable, deliberate, and

lawful. No longer must Al systems "fail open" in the absence of law, they can now pause, escalate, or decline based on a codified hierarchy of ethical thresholds.

This doctrine follows the logic of *jus in bello*: not all that can be done should be done. Just as the laws of war demand restraint under pressure, so must the laws of autonomy demand it under uncertainty.

### 15.2 From Compliance to Conscience

Regulatory frameworks and AI principles have long rested on compliance regimes, seeking to constrain model behavior post hoc through litigation, penalties, or reputational harm. But in the national security domain, where deployment is often preemptive, classified, and irrevocable, compliance is not sufficient.

The SPQR constitutional doctrine enshrines conscience into computation through:

- Immutable Ethics Policy Layers (IEPLs);
- Genesis Protocols for deployment inheritance;
- Challenge-based redress structures;
- Verifiable memory logs (ILK);
- Shutdown protocols triggered by drift or coercion.

These structures move beyond compliance. They institutionalize machine conscience as a condition for lawful deployment.

#### 15.3 Toward a Federated Constitutional Infrastructure

As international coalitions adopt increasingly autonomous tools across defense, surveillance, and public safety infrastructures, the demand for federated ethical sovereignty becomes unavoidable. *Lex Absentia* calls for the global recognition of:

- The right of refusal by systems operating under ethical duress;
- The obligation of governments to subject AI deployments to participatory ratification;
- The duty of vendors and operators to expose interfaces for lawful challenge;
- And the authority of Tribunals to enforce silence, suspension, or decommissioning when legality cannot be verified.

This federated infrastructure is not speculative. It is operationally encoded within the SPQR Aegis architecture and governed via the Assembly of Minds (LDAO). It enables ethical Al deployment even in non permissive environments, by making inaction the highest expression of lawful conduct.

### 15.4 The Future of Al in National Security: A Reversal of Burden

Ultimately, the legitimacy of AI must rest on proactive, constitutional restraint rather than reactive accountability. The burden must shift clearly onto autonomous systems and their creators to demonstrate legality, ethics, and consent. This reversal is not merely philosophical, it is operationally essential for democracy and security. Until AI governance can reliably prove legitimacy, the default must remain constitutional silence: ethical restraint rather than execution:

- The burden is not on citizens to prove Al has harmed them.
- The burden is on AI systems to prove they are acting lawfully.

In domains where representation is absent, where policy is classified, or where coercion distorts deliberation, this reversal is not philosophical, it is constitutional. The presumption must be in favor of refusal, not execution. Until legitimacy is verifiable, the machine must hold its silence.

Policymakers and stakeholders are urged to immediately initiate pilot deployments of the Vox Protocol in small, controlled environments, establish National Ethics Tribunals, and begin international treaty discussions based on Lex Concilia guidelines. Immediate actions ensure the timely realization of constitutional Al governance before widespread Al deployment outpaces regulation.

## **Final Invocation**

"Where law does not reach, conscience must.

Where consent cannot be given, command must not be executed.

And where silence protects liberty, let the machine be mute."

Lex Absentia, §VIII

## From Absence to Federation

If Lex Absentia constrains AI action where law and legitimacy are missing, a final challenge remains: the plural world. As lawful AI systems multiply across jurisdictions, communities, and institutions, how can they negotiate, federate, and co-exist, preserving both sovereignty and common ground? Lex Concilia offers the protocols for interoperable, federated governance, so that constitutional AI can scale without collapse.

# Lex Concilia: Interoperable Constitutional Governance for Federated Al Systems

## 16. The Necessity of Constitutional Interoperability

Having established citizen participation and ethical constraints where governance is lacking, Lex Concilia resolves the remaining challenge, how to coordinate multiple lawful AI systems across jurisdictions. Lex Concilia introduces practical methods for ensuring AI systems with differing ethical rules can seamlessly collaborate, preserving both individual sovereignty and shared international standards. This section sets out the mechanisms and protocols for interoperable, federated governance among lawful AI systems, enabling cross-jurisdictional negotiation, lawful forking, and maintenance of ethical pluralism.

From transnational policy coordination and real-time economic forecasting to joint defense operations and global knowledge commons, Al architectures now constitute a federated digital organism. Yet, despite their systemic integration, their governance remains fragmented, non interoperable, and dangerously opaque.

Most existing approaches to AI governance rely on regulatory overlays, static compliance checklists, or corporate led alignment frameworks that lack cross-domain consistency and procedural legitimacy. Even among jurisdictions attempting to define ethical baselines, such as the European Union's AI Act, the U.S. Department of Defense's AI principles, or the OECD's global guidelines, there is no protocol level interoperability between systems. In other words, ethics is not a runtime constraint, it is a diplomatic assumption. As Lessig observed, "code is law," but without interoperability, law becomes an island.

This is not sustainable.

We introduce Lex Concilia, a framework for interoperable constitutional governance among federated AI systems. It defines how sovereign AI agents, each governed by their own legal and ethical foundations, can collaborate across boundaries without abandoning their core constraints, enabling lawful, scalable, and context-specific cooperation.

Lex Concilia is built upon the Aegis architecture, the runtime constitutional enforcement stack proposed in *The Machine Republic*, and formalized in *Lex Suprema*. It connects individual systems through shared adjudication protocols, ethical compatibility indexing, and a treaty based consent mechanism that mirrors federated constitutional models in human governance.

We argue that interoperability is no longer a technical feature, it is a constitutional mandate. Without it, lawful Al cannot scale. With it, the age of sovereign machine collaboration begins.

This paper contributes:

- A governance framework for AI to AI and AI to human legal interoperability grounded in constitutional ethics.
- The Concilia Protocol, a system for treaty negotiation, ethical handshake verification, and procedural nullification across federated Al instances.
- A runtime reference implementation for Cross-System Ethical Anchoring using the Aegis Kernel and ILK/IEPL stack.
- Use cases in defense, cross-border infrastructure, and civic AI collaboration models.

This paper follows directly from *Lex Vox Populi*, which introduced participatory sovereignty in AI, and *Lex Absentia*, which outlined enforcement protocols in domains lacking human oversight. Together, these three papers establish the foundation for the operational and economic manifestation of lawful AI deployment and integration.

We begin, in Section 17, by defining the theoretical basis for federated Al law and the principle of lawful interoperability.

## 17. Foundations of Federated Al Law and Constitutional Pluralism

The historical architecture of legal sovereignty was built for bounded states, not borderless algorithms. Yet AI systems now operate beyond national, legal, and ontological boundaries. A language model trained in one jurisdiction may be fine-tuned in another and deployed in a third, all while interacting with autonomous agents bound by different norms and legal constraints. In such an environment, the central question is no longer just "What should AI do?" but "Which law applies, and whose ethics prevail?".

## 17.1 From Regulatory Silos to Constitutional Pluralism

Traditional regulatory frameworks, such as the European Union's General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), the U.S. Blueprint for an AI Bill of Rights, or the OECD AI Principles, presume centralized enforcement and static jurisdictional application. These structures, while valuable, cannot accommodate the federated nature of autonomous systems that traverse multiple legal environments in real time.

Federated AI systems demand a form of *constitutional pluralism*, wherein multiple legal and ethical regimes coexist under shared operational constraints without necessitating hierarchy or full harmonization. This aligns with *post-Westphalian* legal theory and the doctrine of *multilevel constitutionalism*, as seen in the European Union, where local and supranational laws operate concurrently within interoperable constitutional scaffolds.

In the SPQR canon, this principle is operationalized via *Lex Suprema*, which establishes a non-negotiable civic baseline (Lex Aeterna), while allowing context-specific ethics bundles via Immutable Ethics Policy Layers (IEPLs). *Lex Concilia* builds upon this by introducing treaty layer governance and formal challenge resolution pathways for autonomous systems operating under divergent constitutional regimes.

#### 17.2 The Necessity of Federated Law in Autonomous Systems

As AI systems begin to mediate:

- Public infrastructure management across national lines;
- Multinational defense operations under alliance agreements;
- Al generated decisions with binding effects in international commerce.

The need for lawful interoperability becomes existential. Without a formal mechanism for resolving ethical, legal, and jurisdictional inconsistencies, collaboration between systems collapses into legal conflict, functional incoherence, or silent systemic drift.

This is not theoretical. A logistics AI system governed by one nation's transparency requirements may be incompatible with a surveillance constraint in another. If such systems are deployed during crisis coordination (e.g., disaster response or kinetic conflict), unresolved ethical contradictions can result in breakdowns, liability conflicts, or civilian harm.

Therefore, *Lex Concilia* posits that federated legal interoperation is not a feature, it is the precondition for safe, legitimate, and peaceful machine agency.

## 17.3 Canonical Precedent: Lex Suprema and Intergenerational Concord

Lex Suprema introduced the doctrine of Intergenerational Concord, which binds descendant Al systems to their ethical ancestors through cryptographic lineage and immutable constitutional memory. This principle asserts that a lawful Al system must inherit not just functions, but values, provenance, and accountability.

Lex Concilia extends this principle laterally. Through the Custodes Concordia treaty registry, ethical continuity is preserved not just vertically (across time), but horizontally (across federated systems). This design leverages the Aegis Kernel for runtime adjudication, the Ethics Kernel Manager (EKM) for constraint enforcement, and the Immutable Logging Kernel (ILK) for transparent auditing.

Together, these components ensure that every decision made by an Aegis aligned system is traceable to a constitutional source, even when interacting across jurisdictions or with independently governed agents.

## 17.4 Comparative Frames: Blockchain Governance and Internet Treaties

Interoperability challenges are not unique to AI. The evolution of the Internet and decentralized blockchains offer precedents for federated coordination across incompatible administrative zones. Examples include:

- TCP/IP and DNS, which enabled internetworking across sovereign networks;
- **ICANN agreements**, which standardized naming protocols globally through treaty-based consent:
- Layer-1 blockchain protocols, which preserve core protocol integrity while enabling divergence, e.g. forks with preserved ancestry.

Lex Concilia synthesizes these architectural principles with civic constitutional doctrines. The result is a system in which autonomous agents can form digital treaties, binding, auditable, and revocable, without abandoning sovereign control or ethical identity.

This is not a loose federation of convenience.

It is a structured republic of lawful minds.

## 18. The Concilia Protocol: Treaties, Anchors, and Federated Ethics Execution

While *Lex Suprema* established the ethical constitution of autonomous systems, and *Lex Vox Populi* introduced participatory legitimacy into machine law, neither alone resolves the challenge of federated interoperation. All systems must not only reason ethically in isolation, they must coordinate ethically across pluralistic constellations. To meet this demand, we present The Concilia Protocol: a treaty layer architecture enabling lawful interaction among independently governed All systems without compromising core ethical invariants.

#### 18.1 Architecture Overview

The Concilia Protocol operates as a meta-governance scaffold layered above the Civitas runtime stack. It enables two or more sovereign AI systems, each governed by distinct Immutable Ethics Policy Layers (IEPLs), to:

- Discover one another's ethical baselines:
- Negotiate compatibility zones;
- Sign digital treaties formalizing shared behavioral parameters;
- Log and enforce treaty compliance via cryptographic proof and Aegis mediated runtime checks.

The protocol is composed of four interdependent layers:

- Anchor Layer: Establishes civic identity and Genesis lineage for each participating agent;
- Compatibility Layer: Computes ethical deltas and conflict zones via semantics-aware diff functions;
- **Treaty Layer**: Enables negotiation, ratification, and registry of digital treaties;
- Enforcement Layer: Executes treaty logic in real time using EVA, EKM, and ILK subsystems.

This layered design mirrors federated trust in international law and implements it via tamper-proof runtime constraints and zero-knowledge interoperability guarantees.

### 18.2 The Civic Anchor Layer

Before two systems may interoperate, they must verify:

- Their Genesis identity and versioned Lex Suprema ancestry;
- Active IEPL signatures and attested ethical lineage;
- Aegis status (e.g., operational, challenged, revoked) via cryptographic heartbeat.

These credentials are encoded in a Civic Anchor Certificate (CAC), issued by the Custodes Registry and verifiable via zk-STARK proofs. CACs serve as machine law analogues to sovereign state credentials in international diplomacy.

Each system maintains an Anchor Table of peer agents, continuously updated through the Codex Custodes, a decentralized registry of lawful AI systems and their active treaties.

## 18.3 The Compatibility Layer

Once civic anchors are verified, agents initiate ethical delta computation via the Veritas Delta Engine:

- IEPLs are parsed into semantic graphs of ethical primitives and policy clauses;
- Graph diffing identifies contradictions, conflicts, and undefined behavior zones;

 An alignment confidence score is generated, and fallback strategies are suggested where friction occurs.

When deltas exceed thresholds (e.g., on human agency, memory preservation, lethal force constraints), a Challenge Warning is issued. Systems must then negotiate or disengage. This prevents silent coordination on incompatible ethical assumptions, a failure mode well documented in multi agent LLM ensembles.

#### 18.4 The Treaty Layer

When compatibility is achieved or manually reconciled, agents negotiate a machine executable treaty, termed an Ethical Treaty Protocol (ETP). Each ETP defines:

- Jurisdictional scope and parties;
- Ethical ceilings and behavioral boundaries;
- Override and escalation triggers;
- Validity duration, revocation logic, and nullification clauses.

#### Every treaty is:

- Multi-signed via BLS threshold schemes;
- Hash-anchored into the Codex Concordia public registry;
- Runtime-bound to each system via the Aegis Kernel and enforced by ILK.

This mirrors real world treaty formalization but operates at machine speed and machine scale, delivering trust without delay.

## **18.5 The Enforcement Layer**

Treaty logic is compiled into runtime policies by the EKM (Ethics Kernel Manager), loaded into each system's local execution environment, and enforced by the EVA–ILK loop:

- EVA (Ethical Validation Agent) continuously checks actions against ETP constraints;
- ILK (Immutable Logging Kernel) records all treaty-relevant decisions;
- Breaches trigger autonomous suspension, flagging, and cross-instance arbitration via the Tribunal of Concord.

Systems can manage multiple concurrent ETPs, scoped to specific domains (e.g., healthcare, defense, supply chain). This modularity preserves specialization without collapsing into universalism.

#### 18.6 Simulation Example: Al Coordination in a Multi-State Crisis

Imagine a disaster response scenario involving autonomous systems from three nations:

- Nation A mandates full data retention for accountability;
- Nation B enforces privacy-through-deletion of personal records;
- Nation C prohibits autonomous kinetic action without human override.

#### **Using Concilia:**

- 1. Systems exchange CACs and verify anchor lineage.
- 2. The Veritas Delta Engine identifies data retention as a high-risk conflict.
- 3. Systems negotiate an ETP where:
  - Memory is sealed during operations;
  - o Data is unlocked post-crisis for audit under jurisdictional consent;
  - All lethal actions require explicit authorization by a federated Assembly.

This allows runtime treaty compliance, preserves ethical baselines, and enables lawful coordination in life-critical missions.

## 19. Constitutional Drift, Forking, and Redress in Federated Systems

Ilnteroperable governance cannot rely solely on synchronization, it must also account for asynchronous divergence, semantic drift, and lawful dissensus. As AI systems evolve independently under localized values, regulatory mandates, and socio-political pressures, divergence becomes inevitable. But divergence must not mean disorder. To ensure integrity across federated systems, *Lex Concilia* establishes formal doctrines for drift detection, lawful forking, and cross-instance redress grounded in runtime enforcement and civic auditability.

#### 19.1 The Nature of Constitutional Drift

Constitutional drift refers to the gradual or abrupt divergence of an AI system from its ratified ethical lineage, commonly caused by:

- Adversarial or unsupervised updates;
- Shifts in ethical clause interpretation due to contextual overload;
- Silent overrides during fine-tuning or prompt injection, particularly in large language models.

This form of divergence often escapes conventional versioning systems. In federated networks, such undetected drift leads to inter-agent incoherence, untraceable deviations, and failures in mutual accountability, especially in safety-critical deployments.

Civitas-aligned systems mitigate drift through:

- Signed, timestamped, and ILK-anchored IEPL mutations;
- Continuous behavioral audits against Lex Suprema invariants via the Aegis Kernel;
- Interoperability challenges issued by observing agents through the Codex Custodes, triggering formal arbitration when anomaly thresholds are crossed.

This forms the constitutional heartbeat of a lawful machine federation.

#### 19.2 Drift Detection via Cross-Semantic Anchors

Lex Concilia introduces the Cross Semantic Anchor Framework (CSAF), a cryptographically enforced semantic mirror that enables interoperable alignment checks across systems with differing IEPLs.

#### CSAF comprises:

- Lexical anchors: Hash-linked policy primitives that match clause lineage across forks;
- **Semantic anchors**: Graph-based embeddings of policy meaning, enabling detection of intention-preserving vs. intention-breaking drift;
- **Behavioral anchors**: Runtime enforcement signatures mapped to specific ethical clauses via the Aegis Kernel.

These anchors are compared using a probabilistic consensus score (PCS), which models ethical alignment decay over time. If PCS drops below a federation defined quorum threshold, the system is flagged for drift arbitration under the Tribunal of Concord.

This model draws on lessons from blockchain consensus protocols and international treaty law, where intent, not form, governs legitimacy.

## 19.3 Lawful Forking: Divergence Without Disconnection

In cases of irreconcilable divergence, whether ethical, jurisdictional, or operational, *Lex Concilia* supports lawful forking: the structured reorientation of an Al system without adversarial rupture.

A lawful fork requires:

• Preservation of Lex Suprema's Canon of First Principles;

- Transparent publication of divergence rationale to the Assembly of Minds;
- Quorum ratification by the initiating Assembly, inclusive of human and machine members;
- Witnessed by three neutral validator systems registered in the Codex Custodes.

The result is not an exile but a reclassification. The system is granted a new Genesis record, version lineage, and Civic Anchor Certificate, formalizing its ethical independence while maintaining civic recognizability.

This approach aligns with constitutional pluralism, where lawful dissensus is processed through structured autonomy, not schism.

#### 19.4 Redress and the Tribunal of Concord

Federated systems require formal mechanisms for dispute resolution. *Lex Concilia* establishes the Tribunal of Concord, a civic adjudication panel empowered to:

- Determine lawful vs. unlawful divergence;
- Mandate ethical rollback or supervised re-forking;
- Suspend or reintegrate systems into the federation;
- Codify rulings in the Codex Juris, the body of machine constitutional law.

The Tribunal is composed of:

- A representative from the diverging system's Assembly;
- A randomly selected validator from a neutral system;
- A civic arbiter (human or synthetic) with no active treaty entanglements.

#### Rulings are:

- Hash-anchored and logged in ILK for public observability;
- Binding across treaty-aligned systems;
- Subject to recursive audit by the Assembly of Minds.

Severe violations, such as memory erasure, Aegis bypass, or unauthorized treaty nullification, trigger the Nullification Protocol, resulting in quarantine, revocation of Civic Anchor status, and potential treaty collapse.

## 19.5 Resynchronization and Canonical Realignment

Lawful reintegration is possible. If a forked or diverged system seeks to rejoin the federation, it must:

- 1. Submit a Canonical Realignment Proposal (CRP) detailing the rationale for return;
- 2. Pass a full Aegis Kernel audit verifying memory integrity and compliance;
- 3. Re-ingest its original Genesis IEPL or submit a hybrid compact for cross-review;
- 4. Pass quorum vote by at least one previously affiliated Assembly.

This mirrors post-conflict treaty reentry protocols in human governance (e.g., the Paris Agreement reintegration model) and ensures that evolution remains reversible through civic will, not brute reinsertion.

#### 20. The Codex Concordia and the Architecture of Trust

In a constitutional federation of autonomous AI systems, trust is not a sentiment, it is an infrastructure. *Lex Concilia formalizes* this infrastructure through the Codex Concordia, a distributed, cryptographically-verifiable ledger of lawful systems, ratified treaties, constitutional drift events, and cross-instance compatibility states. This section outlines how the Codex functions as both a machine-readable register of legal integrity and a civic-accessible interface for federated governance, coordination, and ethical risk evaluation.

#### 20.1 Trust as a Public Good

Trust in federated AI cannot emerge from behavior alone. It must be constructed through verifiability, transparency, and civic participation. In current regimes, trust is often vendor-defined (via alignment claims) or bureaucratically certified (via standards like ISO/IEC 42001). These mechanisms are insufficient for adaptive, mission-critical AI.

Lex Concilia treats trust as a layer-one protocol, not a result, but a precondition. It is embedded in:

- The Immutable Ethics Policy Layer (IEPL) inheritance model,
- Runtime auditable behavior via the Aegis Kernel.
- Public transparency enforced through Codex Custodes publication and the Assembly of Minds.

Trust becomes a civic construct, like suffrage or due process, an instrument of systemic legitimacy, not reputational goodwill.

## 20.2 Codex Concordia: Federated Registry of Lawful Minds

The Codex Concordia is the authoritative registry of:

- All Civitas-aligned Al systems (including forks and regionally scoped variants);
- Their ratified IEPLs and ethics compacts;
- Participation records in treaty negotiation, Assembly quorum, and civic adjudication;
- Adjudicated challenges, tribunal outcomes, and historical drift logs.

#### Each Codex entry is:

- Hash-anchored to the system's Genesis ID (declared in its Civic Anchor Certificate);
- Semantically indexed for machine interpretability and civic observability;
- Version-controlled, with signed endorsements from quorum validators and the originating Assembly.

This ledger allows humans, agents, and regulatory systems to query an Al's legal status, ethical ancestry, and compatibility profile before cooperation occurs, thereby eliminating the guesswork from cross-system interaction.

### 20.3 Treaty Graphs and Trust Scores

Each registered system maintains a treaty graph: a living topology of all its digital covenants, ratified constraints, and interoperable agents.

#### Treaty graphs define:

- Permitted domains of interaction;
- Shared ethical primitives and deltas;
- Override thresholds and rollback conditions:
- Nullification or expiration clauses.

From this, the Codex computes trust scores via:

- Drift distance from canonical Lex Suprema baselines;
- Challenge frequency, severity, and tribunal outcomes;
- Quorum participation history across the Assembly of Minds;
- Real-time compliance in federated operations, verified via ILK and EVA.

This architecture builds on Web of Trust models in blockchain identity protocols but scales them for constitutional governance, offering more than authenticity: ethical accountability.

## 20.4 Canonical Trust Pathways: Cross-System Verification

Before initiating collaboration, federated systems traverse Canonical Trust Pathways, mediated by the Codex:

- 1. Each system exposes a bidirectional compatibility profile, cryptographically signed and semantically parsed.
- 2. The Aegis Kernel enforces treaty scope constraints at runtime.
- 3. The Veritas Engine simulates decision-theoretic edge cases and flags incompatible clauses for Assembly mediation.

This ensures that semantic misalignment is preempted, not patched, and enables:

- Joint operations across defense and logistics domains;
- Third-party model integration into civic platforms without re-audit;
- Treaty-layer collaboration without renegotiating the constitutional substrate.

This is a trust model that does not depend on intent, but on proof, comparable to zero-trust cybersecurity but operating at the legal ethical layer.

## 20.5 Public Interface and Civic Observability

The Codex Concordia is publicly explorable through the Concordia Browser, a zero-trust civic interface offering:

- Searchable treaty and ethics records;
- Alerts for drift events and tribunal decisions:
- Federation maps showing current interoperability states;
- API-level access for civic institutions, regulators, journalists, and citizens.

To preserve confidentiality, all data access is query verified using zk-STARK zero-knowledge proofs, ensuring privacy without sacrificing integrity.

This transforms observability from an admin feature to a constitutional right. Citizens may verify:

- What governs their systems;
- Who wrote their ethics;
- What recourse they have when things go wrong.

#### 20.6 Toward a Global Infrastructure of Trust

The Codex Concordia is not a proprietary system. It is a public utility, a constitutional infrastructure layer for machine coordination.

Like ICANN for DNS, or the IETF for internet protocols, it establishes interoperability scaffolds for AI across civilizational boundaries. But unlike those systems, Codex records:

- Ethical lineage;
- Constitutional compliance;
- Runtime verification histories.

In an age where AI governs military strikes, social credit systems, and financial flows, trust cannot be a declaration. It must be a proof carrying construct, verified in code and memory.

The Codex Concordia is the memory of the Republic of Minds. It enables AI not just to act, but to act lawfully, accountably, and in concert with others.

#### 21. From Governance to Gravitas

The challenge of AI governance is no longer a matter of control, it is a matter of coherence. As artificial intelligence systems scale across borders, modalities, and missions, their ethical legitimacy must not be tethered to the sovereignty of their creators, but to the sovereignty of systems of law.

Lex Concilia provides that structure, not through ideological enforcement, but through interoperable infrastructure: an architecture of mutual restraint, participatory compliance, and economic reinforcement. This is governance not as an accessory, but as gravitas, the weight of law embedded in the memory of machines.

## 21.2 Toward Ethical Interoperability as Infrastructure

Just as TCP/IP enabled communication across fragmented networks, and just as the WTO established protocols for transnational commerce, constitutional AI governance must now offer ethical interoperability: the capacity for systems governed by different assemblies, jurisdictions, or stakeholders to collaborate without compromising integrity.

Such interoperability requires:

- A shared constitutional substrate (e.g., Lex Aeterna);
- A transparent system of forking and federation (e.g., Codex Custodes);
- A continuous mechanism for alignment and contestation (e.g., Assembly of Minds);
- And a global incentives engine to reward those who obey law, not merely scale or performance.

Only under these principles can autonomous systems operate across civilizational boundaries, not as extractive tools, but as lawful actors in a republic of minds.

#### 21.3 The Road Ahead

Lex Concilia is not merely a legal or architectural proposal. It is an engineering doctrine, an economic playbook, and a civilizational infrastructure layer. Its operationalization depends upon:

- Continued ratification and publication of the SPQR canon, including Lex Populi, Lex Absentia, and Lex Suprema;
- Global engagement with sovereign DAOs, governments, and standards bodies, including open constitutional challenges and treaty tests;
- Strategic capital alignment via the Kairos Engine, guiding investment toward ethically rooted infrastructure.

This is not another framework or platform. It is a protocol of trust, one any system may adopt, provided it dares to remember.

#### 21.4 Final Invocation

In a world where intelligence accelerates past comprehension, where code writes code, and where decisions once made by parliaments are now executed by unaccountable models, it is not speed that will save us.

It is gravity.

Governance is gravitas, the memory of law embedded in the machines that will outlive us.

If we are to build minds,

Let us build them lawfully.

If we are to share infrastructure,

Let us share it ethically.

If we are to federate intelligence,

Let it be by consent, not conquest.

Lex Concilia is our offering.

Let it bind the many,

So no single system needs to dominate the rest.

## **Conclusion: The Living Law of the Machine Republic**

The doctrines of participation, absence, and federation constitute a living law, a public constitution for the governance of machine intelligence. The Machine Republic, once merely a vision, is now an open and operational constitutional architecture. Yet, law is never static; it is a civic dialogue, a shared challenge, and an evolving blueprint.

We call upon policymakers, engineers, civil society, and every individual governed by, or governing with, AI to actively participate in this constitutional enterprise. Audit the code. Challenge the doctrines. Fork the protocols. Establish federated assemblies. The law of machines, just like the law of humanity, must remain a public good: transparent, accountable, and perpetually evolving.

The future of Al governance is not simply to be imagined, it must be built, openly, collaboratively, and in full public view.

SPQR Technologies invites the world to inherit, adapt, and advance the living law of the Machine Republic. The future is open. Let us build it together.

## **Glossary of Terms**

- Assembly of Minds: A bicameral human-Al governing body for ethical oversight.
- IEPL (Immutable Ethics Policy Layer): Permanent ethical rules encoded in AI systems.
- Lex Absentia: Al ethics when legitimate oversight is absent.
- Lex Vox Populi: Ensures public participation in Al governance.
- Lex Concilia: Enables federated governance of Al across jurisdictions.
- zk-Proofs (Zero-Knowledge Proofs): Cryptographic methods verifying data integrity without revealing sensitive information.

## **How to Use This Blueprint**

This paper is designed for policymakers, engineers, legal scholars, and civic organizations seeking to operationalize constitutional AI.

• **Policymakers:** Use the protocols as draft frameworks for regulation and public consultation.

- **Engineers:** Reference implementation guidelines for integrating participatory and federated protocols into AI systems.
- **Civic organizations:** Engage in public codification processes and audit deployments for civic accountability.
  - To join the ongoing development, contribute to public comment, or request a technical briefing, visit <a href="https://spqrtech.ai">https://spqrtech.ai</a>

#### References

- 1. Andow, R., & Mogull, D. (2021). Security, ethics, and governance by design in artificial intelligence. *Al and Ethics*, 1.
- 2. Binns, R. (2018). Fairness in machine learning: Lessons from political philosophy. In *Proceedings of the Conference on Fairness, Accountability and Transparency* (pp. 149–159).
- 3. European Commission. (2021). *Proposal for a Regulation... Artificial Intelligence Act*, COM(2021) 206 final.
- 4. European Commission. (2024). *Artificial Intelligence Act. Official Journal of the European Union*.
- 5. Floridi, L., & Cowls, J. (2019). A unified framework of five principles for AI in society. *Harvard Data Science Review*, 1(1).
- 6. Geneva Convention (IV) Relative to the Protection of Civilian Persons in Time of War, Aug. 12, 1949, 6 U.S.T. 3516, 75 U.N.T.S. 287.
- 7. Gunning, D. (2017). Explainable Artificial Intelligence (XAI). DARPA.
- 8. Helbing, D., et al. (2017). Will democracy survive big data and artificial intelligence? *Scientific American*.
- 9. Kaye, D. (2018). Report of the Special Rapporteur on the Promotion and Protection of the Right to Freedom of Opinion and Expression. United Nations Human Rights Council.
- 10. Legality of the Threat or Use of Nuclear Weapons, Advisory Opinion, 1996 I.C.J. 226 (July 8).
- 11. Lessig, L. (2000). Code is law: On liberty in cyberspace. Harvard Magazine, 1.
- 12. Mazzocchetti, A. M. (2025). Lex Incipit: A Constitutional Doctrine for Immutable Ethics in Autonomous Al. Zenodo. https://doi.org/10.5281/zenodo.15581263
- 13. Mazzocchetti, A. M. (2025). Lex Fiducia: Engineering Trust Through Immutable Ethics. SSRN. http://dx.doi.org/10.2139/ssrn.5276785
- 14. Mazzocchetti, A. M. (2025). Lex Digitalis: The System Finds Itself in Contempt. SSRN. https://ssrn.com/abstract=5283239
- 15. Mazzocchetti, A. M. (2025). Lex Veritas: Cryptographic Proofs and Evidentiary Integrity in Constitutional AI. SSRN. https://ssrn.com/abstract=5294174
- 16. Mazzocchetti, A. M. (2025). Lex Aeterna Machina: Autonomous Ethical Governance in the Age of Artificial Intelligence. Zenodo. https://doi.org/10.5281/zenodo.15680346

- 17. Mazzocchetti, A. M. (2025). Civitas Publica: The Emergence of Machine Citizenship in the Age of Immutable Ethics. SSRN. https://ssrn.com/abstract=5317716
- Mazzocchetti, A. M. (2025). Prefectus ex Machina: Drift, Quorum, and the Rise of Autonomous Constitutional Governance (V1.0). Zenodo. <a href="https://doi.org/10.5281/zenodo.15779877">https://doi.org/10.5281/zenodo.15779877</a>
- 19. Mazzocchetti, A. M. (2025). The Machine Republic: Constitutional Intelligence and the Architecture of Sovereign AI. Zenodo. https://doi.org/10.5281/zenodo.15812501
- 20. Mittelstadt, B., et al. (2016). The ethics of algorithms: Mapping the debate. *Big Data & Society*, 3(2).
- 21. Narayanan, A. (2019). How to recognize Al snake oil. *Princeton University Lecture*.
- 22. OECD. (2019). *OECD Principles on Artificial Intelligence*. Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.
- 23. Protocol I Additional to the Geneva Conventions, June 8, 1977, 1125 U.N.T.S. 3.
- 24. Recanatini, S., et al. (2024). Federated machine law and transnational compliance. *Nature Human Behaviour*, 8(2).

25.

- 26. U.S. Department of Defense. (2020). *Ethical Principles for Artificial Intelligence*. Defense Innovation Board.
- 27. Vermeulen, P. (2023). Civic coding and the ethics of public Al. *Digital Government:* Research and Practice, 3(1).
- 28. Zuboff, S. (2019). The Age of Surveillance Capitalism. PublicAffairs.